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SUBJECT:

REFERENCE:

TO:

City oF HOUSTON

Administration & Regulatory Affairs
Department
Strategic Purchasing Division

Letter of Clarification No. 5
Security Service for Houston Airport System
RFP No.: S11-T23766

All Prospective Respondents

This Letter of Clarification is issued for the following reasons:

Annise D. Parker
Mayor

Calvin D. Wells, Deputy Director
City Purchasing Agent

P.O. Box 1562

Houston, Texas 77251-1562

F. 832.393.8755
https://purchasing.houstontx.gov

1. Extend the Bid Opening Date from Friday, December 3, 2010 at 10:30 a.m. to Friday, December 17,

2010 at 10:30 a.m.

¢ The following questions and City of Houston responses are hereby incorporated and made a part of

the RFP:

1.  Will the City of Houston accept an accountant’s compilation of financial statements in lieu of

audited financial statements?

Answer: No.

1.1 If so, what is the charge?

Answer: N/A

1.2 Does the space have internet and telephone connectivity?

Answer: Yes, voice and data outlets are avallable.

1.3 If yes, is there a charge for these services? If so, what is the charge?

Answer: Please refer to Section 29.1 of the BFP.

2. Page 4, Uniform Instructions to Offerors, para 11.0 versus, page 23, Proposal Outline and Minimum
Content Requirements, 14.5.

2.1 Will the space being provided by the airport satisfy the requirement for a base office as specified

in 14.5?

Answer: Yes.

3. Page 6, General Terms and Conditions, 1.2 versus pages 7-8, General Terms and Conditions, 3.0. Will
HAS consider a change in the indemnification language that limits a prime contractor’s
indemnification obligations to the insurance requirements specified in Section 3.0?

Answer: No.
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4. Page 6, General Terms and Conditions, 1.2. Please verify whether the Release found in Section 1.1 is
limited exclusively to the prime contractor’s performance under the contract?

Answer: Yes.

5. Page 11, M/\WBE Instructions to Proposers, 1.1. Do M\WBE companies in the Proposer’s M/WBE
program have to be certified and/or registered with HAS?

Answer: Certified with the City of Houston.
6. Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 1.0. Is the scope of work to provide services at

all three airports (IAH, HOU and EFD) or only IAH? If the scope of work is to provide services at all
three airports, what are the post requirements for HOU and EFD?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 11.
7. Page 13, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 3.2. Is the referenced

Management Plan to be provided as part of an Offeror’s proposal, or is this a post-award
deliverable?

Answer: Management Plan to be provided at time of proposal.
8. Page 13, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 3.3. Is there any provision for the

City to pay a premium for additional temporary duty Officers if the request for additional Officers is
made without advance notice?

Answer: No premium.

8.1 If so, what is the premium and what is the threshold for defining advance notice?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 20.

9. Page 16, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 7.0. Is it permissible for a supervisor
to provide temporary post coverage (relief and or call out)?

Answer: No.
9.1 Is it permissible for the project manager to provide temporary post coverage (relief and or call
out)?
Answer: No.

10. Page 19, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 8.2.11. What is the expected number
of vehicle escorts that may happen at any one time?

Answer: Escort vehicles are not utilized at this time, but may be needed in the future.
10.1 How many vehicles does the incumbent contractor have for escort duties?

Answer: None at this time.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

10.2 Are there any specific requirements for escort vehicles other than those identified in para
8.2.10.1?

Answer: Same as any other vendor vehicle on grounds.

Page 22, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirement, 9.3.1.18. Reference is made to the
guards being commissioned. Our understanding is that the term “commissioned” refers to guards
who are armed. Please clarify, are there any occasions or circumstances where armed guard
services would be required by this contract?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 8.3,
Page 23, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 13.0, versus page 22, Proposal
Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 12.1. Can the requirement for a two way radio in each
vehicle be satisfied by the two way radio equipment required to be issued to each guard (i.e., can the

hand held equipment issued under the requirement found in 12.1 suffice to satisfy the requirement
found in 13.0)?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 35.
Page 23, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 14.2. Regarding the requirement that

the Supervisor to Security Officer ratio be to the satisfaction of the AGM, is there any specific
guidance as to what the AGM considers to be a “satisfactory ratio” (i.e., a no less than factor)?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 37.1.
Page 24 - 25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2.
14.1 Are there any Posts to be covered located anywhere other than at IAH?
Answer: Not at this time.
14.2 If so, what are the other posts/hours?
Answer: N/A.

Page 24 - 25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2. For the Loading Docks,
are Terminals B, C (North and South), D, E, and FIS each separate Posts that require 24/7 coverage
(i.e., these represent seven posts needing to be individually staffed 24/7) or do these represent a
single Post needing to be staffed?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 39.3.

Page 24 - 25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2. For the Gates, NV53
is listed twice. Is this a mistake?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 39.3.



Letter of Clarification 5
Security Guard Services
Solicitation No. T23766

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 24 -25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2. For the Checkpoints, are
Terminals B, C and E separate Posts that require 24/7 coverage (i.e., these represent three posts
needing to be individually staffed) or do these represent a single Post needing to be staffed?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 39.3.

Page 24 - 25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2. Of the Gates, which ones
require vehicle escorts, and what are the hours during which vehicle escorts must be available?

Answer: Refer response to item #10.

Page 24 - 25, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 18.2. What are the current annual
hours that have been expended to provide the post coverage included in the table?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 5.1.
Page 29, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 27.5. Approximately how many

Custom’s bonds are expected to be required? How many customs bonds are currently issued to the
incumbent workforce?

Answer: None at this time. None.
Page 30, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 29.1. Please identify which Posts

identified on the Table on page 25 have a co-located rest room facility. For Posts that do not have a
co-located restroom facility, please identify the distance between the Post and the nearest facility.

Answer: There are no restrooms located at posts.

22. Page 32, Proposal Outline and Minimum Content Requirements, 3.1.2. Regarding the requirement for

23.

a “A statement that the per-unit proposed price and/or lump sum (if prices are proposed) is the total
fixed price for the equipment and services enumerated,” please clarify what type of contract this is. Is
this a fixed price contract or is this a fixed unit rate contract?

Answer: Fixed unit rate contract (All inclusive).
Page 45, Sample Price Sheet/Fee Schedule. Is the Total Proposed Amount an actual fixed price offer

for all five years regardless of actual post hours required by HAS, or is it simply the mechanism by
which total costs can be simulated for the purposes of contract award?

Answer: Proposer shall be paid only for post actually requested and performed.

24. If this is a fixed price contact, what is the basis for the contract value (i.e., the post hours are all

marked as SAMPLES) and what is the basis for determining equitable adjustment for changes to the
quantities of the services to be provided?

Answer: Refer response to item 22.
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25. If this is a fixed unit rate contract, is it correct to assume that all costs (management, overhead,
equipment, uniforms, and consumables, supervisor and guard labor) must be incorporated into a
single hourly fixed unit rate per year? If this is a fixed unit rate contract, what is the basis for billing,
authorized post hours, or actual hours worked? If this is a fixed unit rate contract, are relief hours
directly reimbursable? If this is a fixed unit rate contract, is there any provision for the Contractor to
be paid an overtime rate?

Answer: Refer response to item 22,
26. Page 34, Evaluation and Selection Process, 2.1.2. The Evaluation and Selection process refers to the
Proposer’s Management Plan, but no Management Plan is identified in either the Proposal outline (pg

32 - 33) or the Management and Technical RFP Information to be Supplied by Proposer (pg 14 — 15).
Please clarify.

Answer: Management Plan shall be submitted by the Proposer per Section 4.0 of the AFP.

27. Pages 46 - 48, Sample Price Sheet/Fee Schedule.

27.1 Are supervisory hours directly billable post hours?
Answer: No.

27.2 Are relief personnel hours directly billable?

Answer: No.

27.3 Is the transport time between initial guard muster and deployment on Post directly billable?

Answer: No.

28. Page 46, Sample Price Sheet/Fee Schedule. The estimated Monthly Post hours contained in the Sample
Price Sheet significantly exceed the hours that are derived from the Post information provided in the
table on page 25. Even though both are marked as SAMPLE, to facilitate accurate pricing, could HAS
please clarify what the expected Post Hours are to be?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 5.1.

29. According to FCRA, we are allowed to usurp the state requirement of a maximum of 7 years for a
criminal history check; thus, accomplishing the 10-year check desired is allowed. However, it does not
allow for extended employment verification beyond seven years, which conflicts with the requirement
for a 10-year employment check under Section 9.1.1.7 of the RFP. Can HAS please confirm that the 7-
year employment check allowed by the State is acceptable?

Answer: NO, 10 year check is not required.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

How many hand held radios and base stations are currently provided by the incumbent security
provider?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #2, item 1.

In order to ensure that the radios can work with any other systems currently in place, can HAS identify
what model and type of radios are being required for this contract?

Answer: Radio, brands, models are up to the contractor.

How many security officers require the Airport Customs Security Area Bond as required by Section 27.3
of the RFP?

Answer: None at this time.

What make/model and how many vehicles does the incumbent security company currently provide
(Section 13.1)?

Answer: Two (2) 15-passenger vans and two (2) Toyota sedans.

What is the annual total mileage of the vehicles provided by the incumbent security company (Section
13.1)?

Answer: Approximately 125K miles/year.

Would you please provide a history of the liquidated damages that have been assessed for the last 3
years (Section 25)?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 40.2.

What is the cost per parking stall that will be charged to the security provider as allowed by Section
29.2?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 19.
How many training hours per security officer are required for this contract, broken down by initial or
pre-assignment training, on-site training, HAS orientation training, refresher training and supervisory
training?

Answer: Within the Contractor’s discretion.

Would you please provide the exact schedule for each post to help determine the level of staffing
needed to relieve each officer for the mandated breaks as required by Section 18.1?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 39.3.

Is staffing adjusted during the holidays? If so, can you provide the expected adjustments?

Answer: No.
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40. What are the current wages of the security officers?

41.

42.

43.

45,

46.

47.

49.

Answer: The current post-hour rate is $15.84, however the wages paid by the incumbent to the
employees are unknown to HAS.

Are the cost of the badges listed under Section 27.3 still correct? Additionally, HAS has identified the
cost per location. As services are only being required for 1AH, would HAS please identify the number
of personnel who should also have HOU and EFD badges?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 16.1. No requirement for HOU & EFD at this time.
What is the cost of replacement badges (Section 27.3)?
Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 16.1.

Section 2.0 lists the evaluation criteria in order of importance with M/WBE specified at 12%. What is
the evaluation percentage for the remaining six items?

Answer: 12% is an M/\WBE goal and not an evaluation percentage.

The RFP references commissioned officers. Are any of the officers for this contract required to be
commissioned (Section 24)?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 8.3

Can HAS provide a sample contract to review? The RFP and associated documents don’t include quite
a few standard terms and conditions that are consistent with our industry and type of work.

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #1, item 7.

Is HAS willing to consider alternative language that is more consistent with our industry standards
regarding Sections 1.0, 2.0 and 3.0?

Answer: No.
Do the incumbent personnel meet all of the employee qualifications of the current RFP?
Answer: Yes

Are proposers required to have an already established base office within the City of Houston limits at
time of bid submission?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 22.
Will HAS please provide the current monthly contract cost?

Answer: Approximately $200K
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50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

Will HAS please identity to what percentage is the current incumbent staffed in relation to the required
post hours? This information is necessary to determine the cost of recruitment and training for any
staffing shortages.

Answer: 100%

Would HAS please identify what percentage of the current security force requires training to meet the
RFP requirements?

Answer: 100%.
Would HAS please identify which posts can self-relieve? Additionally, normally “Rover” posts do not
require relief. Please confirm that the rover posts are self-relieving and can serve as relief for other
fixed posts.

Answer: None; Rover post are not self-relieving and cannot serve as relief.

Would HAS please identify if a working uniformed supervisor can conduct post relief?

Answer: Yes they can, but only for relief, they are not allowed to work a post
Is the Contractor responsible for the FCC license for the communications system?

Answer: Yes.

Does HAS require for all officer to report to a central location for roll call and debriefing prior to shift
start? And if so, what is the standard duration of this event and is it billable to HAS?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #4, item 45.
Would HAS please identify the 2009 rate of personnel turnover on the current contract?

Answer: Unknown.
Will HAS provide training space at any of the work sites for contractor training?

Answer: Yes they can, but only as relief, they are not to be working a post

What space and facilities are available for officers at each building for contract related activities (i.e.,
guard mount, breaks, etc.)?

Answer: None, other than the office at Lee Road.
Is the Performance Bond to be included with the bid spec submission?

Answer: Refer response to Clarification #2, item 20.
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60. Currently, how many patrol vehicles are being utilized to service this contract.
Answer: Refer response to item 33.

61. Average weekly, or yearly mileage per vehicle or in total?
Answer: Refer response to item 34.

62. Under the Freedom of Information Act | would request:

OPEN RECORD REQUEST
CONTACT CITY SECRETARY OFFICE BY E-MAIL ONLY:
araopenrecordsrequest@houstontx.gov

62.1 Present vendor(s)

62.2 Award date(s)

62.3 Hourly billing rates for each category upon award
62.4 Prevailing wage requirement at time of award
62.5 Current billing rates.

62.6 Bid tabulation from current award

When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the solicitation documents and
shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with the Letter(s) of
Clarification. It is the responsibility of the respondent to ensure that it has obtained all such letter(s). By
submitting a bid on this project, respondents shall be deemed to have received all Letter(s) of
Clarification and to have incorporated them into this bid.

If you have any questions or if further clarification is needed regarding this solicitation, please contact me.

Sincerely,

Glgria Jordan-King

Senior Procurement alist
City of Houston, Strategic Purchasing Division
832-393-8750

END OF LETTER OF CLARIFICATION NO. 5



